Lord Chancellor and Secretary of State for Justice
The Rt Hon Shabana Mahmood MP 22 October 2024

Dear Justice Secretary,
2025 Criminal Legal Aid Contract
We write in response to the invitation to tender for the 2025 criminal legal aid contract.

On 31 January 2024 the Law Society was successfulin its judicial review against the
Ministry of Justice’s failure to increase criminal defence solicitors’ legal aid rates by
15%, the figure recommended as the bare minimum by Sir Christopher Bellamy in the
independent review of criminal legal aid (CLAIR).

The High Court acknowledged that “the system depends to an unacceptable degree on
the goodwill and generosity of spirit of those currently working within it.” The High Court
made it clear in its judgment that “Unless there are significant injections of funding in
the relatively near future, any prediction along the lines that the system will arrive in due
course at a point of collapse is not overly pessimistic”. These comments were made
against the background of more than a quarter of a century of stagnant and then
reduced rates before the meagre increase in September 2022 which barely put rates
back to 1996 levels without any adjustment for 26 years of inflation.

Criminal defence solicitors are still waiting for announcements on:

i How the Ministry of Justice intends to respond to the Court’s judgment of
January 2024 and how the obligations imposed by the judgment will be
implemented.

ii. The last government’s as yet unfulfilled commitment to a further £21m of
funding to increase rates for Police station and the Youth Court.

iii. Whether the Ministry of Justice will accept the expected recommendations of
the Criminal Legal Aid Advisory Board’s report, which we understand will be
recommending an immediate and substantial increase in rates.

The Law Society has said that “It is wrong that the tender requires firms to bid before the
UK government outlines its response”to the above matters. The Law Society has also
indicated that without a long overdue increase in rates, criminal legal aid defence work
is very unlikely to be financially viable for the vast majority of firms. The current
unattractiveness of criminal defence work is illustrated by the continuing decline in duty
solicitors, their age profile and the vanishingly small number of young people who
choose to become criminal defence trainee solicitors.

We are aware that the Ministry of Justice’s budget is unprotected. However, failing to
invest now will ultimately cost more in the longer term if as predicted the sector ends up
with too few firms and too few lawyers willing and able to do the work, and equally as
important, a failure to do so will escalate the public crisis of confidence in the efficacy



and legitimacy of the Criminal Justice System. Fewer lawyers mean no end to delays for
victims and defendants and a greater risk of miscarriages of justice.

We fully expect that the majority of firms undertaking criminal legal aid work will
preserve their position by submitting a tender for the new contract. However, there is a
huge difference between submitting a tender as a result of an artificially swift deadline
imposed by the Ministry of Justice and actually seeking and ultimately signing a new
contractin 2025. Whether firms decide it is financially viable to continue to provide
legally aided criminal defence services, and accept the contract offer, or maintain a
contract for more than a short period is wholly dependent on whether the new
government heeds the warnings of the profession and the High Court.

We look to the new government to restore rates to a level which will ensure a
sustainable future for the profession.
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